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DATE OF HEARING:  12/12/2017 

TIME OF HEARING:  9:30 AM 
 
 

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County 

District Attorney, through DAVID STANTON, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby 

submits the attached Points and Authorities in Opposition to Defendant’s Petition For Writ Of 

Habeas Corpus. 

This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the 

attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if 

deemed necessary by this Honorable Court. 
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

 The “Statement of Facts” by Petitioner is incomplete, out of context and frequently flat 

wrong.  They will be detailed in the arguments set forth below.  The Petition is devoid of ANY 

legal authority to support the unusual claims contained therein.    

“This court need not consider assignments of error that re not supported by relevant 

legal authority.”  Id. at 498.  See also, Cunningham v. State, 94 Nev. 128, 130 (1978)(“we 

decline to consider appellant’s constitutional challenge to N.R.S. 175.031 because he has 

failed to cite any relevant authority in support of that argument.”);  McKinney v. Sheriff, 93 

Nev. 70 (1977); Williams v. State, 88 Nev. 164 (1972).   

 “A party filing a motion must also serve and file with it a memorandum of points and 

authorities in support of each thereof.  The absence of such memorandum may be construed 

either as an admission that the motion is not meritorious and, as cause for its denial or as a 

waiver of all grounds not so supported.”  EJDCR 3.20(b).   

 Here, for example the Petition proclaims: “Here, the State failed to present any legal 

evidence regarding cause or manner of death.  It is axiomatic that testimony regarding cause 

and manner of death is the exclusive purview of expert testimony.”  Petition, page 11, lns. 6-

8. There is no legal authority that supports such a unusual assertion.  Cause or manner of death 

are not elements of a murder offense.  Further, the cause and manner of death are not within 

the “exclusive purview of expert testimony” as will be deiscussed further infra. 

1. RIGHT TO TESTIFY 

 Marcum notice can only have meaning if the interpretation contemplates all predicate 

criteria have been met.  This, the State, pursuant to the Marcum decision has a minimum 

number of days prior to obtaining an Indictment.  No other logical interpretation of Marcum 

could be had.  Thus, the claim that “notice” to the State that Petitioner wanted to testify is 

insufficient to actually exercise that right.  To hold otherwise, would violate the central 

premise of the Marcum decision itself.  Thus, the mandatory written waiver of rights must be 

presented to the State in within the Marcum framework.  It is uncontroverted that the 
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mandatory written waiver was not presented to the State within the Marcum timeframe.  In 

fact, it has never been presented to the State. 

 Compounding the error regarding Marcum and what constitutes proper “notice,” is 

Petitioner’s incorrect analysis of the “remedy.”  The sole authority relied upon is Solis-

Ramirez v. Eighth Judicial District Court, 112 Nev. 344, 347 (1996) claiming the remedy is 

“dismissal of the Indictment.”  Petition, page 10, lns. 7-8. While the result in that case was 

dismissal it was based upon the remedy sought in that particular defendant’s motion before 

the trial court. 

 Understanding that is relief requested instantly, it does equate to the remedy being 

proper.  Relief, to be proper and meaningful, is to afford Petitioner the relief that they are 

actually complaining of: to wit, the time to testify before the Grand Jury.  
 
If notice required to be served upon a person pursuant to subsection 2 is not 
adequate, the person must be given the opportunity to testify before the grand 
jury. If the person testifies pursuant to this subsection, the grand jury must be 
instructed to deliberate again on all the charges contained in the indictment 
following such testimony. 

N.R.S. 172.241(5).   

 The instant Petition fails to mention, cite to or analyze the prayer for relief in light of 

the 2015 statutory change after the Solis decision. 

2. SUFFICENT EVIDENCE OF MURDER 

 Once again without citation to any legal authority, Petitioner complains that the State 

did not present “any lawful evidence of cause or manner of death.”  Petition, page 10, 21-24.  

Compounding the error further, the Petition incorrectly asserts that Detective McCarthy could 

not testify to the cause and manner of death.  

 Medical/legal cause and manner of death is not an element of murder.  Thus, the 

complaint that failure to produce competent evidence of same is unavailing.  Detective 

McCarthy, an experienced homicide detective, observed the victim deceased at the scene.  He 

observed multiple injuries that, in his experience, were both fatal and non-fatal in nature.  

Detective McCarthy’s testimony in this regard was admissible.  Petitioner’s argument seem 

targeted upon the weight one would attach to such an opinion.  The complaint that this was 
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“expert medical” testimony is incorrect.  Detective McCarthy was not testifying to expert 

medical opinions, but to his percipient observations as a highly trained homicide detective.  

This, coupled with the photographs admitted before the grand jury of the injuries to the victim, 

compromise the competent and admissible evidence establishing the actual elements of murder 

that a person died by the criminal agency of another.   

 Once again Petitioner complains that: “the State failed to present any medical testimony 

whatsoever.”  The State is unaware of any legal authority that would mandate the presentation 

of medical testimony under these circumstances, let alone at a jury trial.  The testimony was 

based upon the direct observations of an experienced homicide detective and the 

corresponding photographs (Grand Jury exhibits 2-21 that are part of the court record in this 

case) corroborating each and every observation by Detective McCarthy. 

3. SUFFICENT EVIDENCE OF KIDNAPING 

 Petitioner’s argument fails to understand the prima facie elements of kidnapping and 

the applicable law interpreting the offense of kidnaping.  Here, the conduct of Petitioner in 

luring the victim to an isolated area to then, in a coordinated attack, beat, rob and kill him falls 

within the definition of the plain meaning of the statutory terms of kidnapping.  N.R.S. 

200.310. 

 If that were not enough, the Nevada Supreme Court has, frequently, defined the scope 

of kidnaping in Nevada.  Quoting from a recent decision: 
 
Jermaine argues that the State did not present sufficient evidence to convict him 
of kidnapping. The Due Process Clause of the United States Constitution 
requires each element that constitutes a crime be proven beyond a reasonable 
doubt. When reviewing a criminal conviction for sufficiency of the evidence, 
this court determines whether any rational trier of fact could have found the 
essential elements of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt when viewing the 
evidence in the light most favorable to the prosecution. The jury's verdict will 
not be disturbed on appeal when there is substantial evidence supporting it.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
/// 
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Under NRS 200.310(1), a person is guilty of first-degree kidnapping if that 
person willfully "inveigles, [or] entices . . . a person by any means whatsoever . 
. . for the purpose of killing the person or inflicting substantial bodily harm upon 
the person . . . ."   Here, the record reflects that Ronnie arrived at the home of 
Ernest and Katrinna and an argument ensued between Ronnie and Ernest. The 
argument escalated and Ernest eventually walked out the front door of his house. 
Thereafter, Ronnie allegedly signaled to an unidentified man who shot Ernest. 
Evidence was presented that this unidentified man was Jermaine. This evidence 
viewed in the light most favorable to the State suggests that there was a specific 
plan to lure Ernest outside of the house for Jermaine to have a clear shot at him. 
Therefore, a rational jury could find that Jermaine had willfully enticed Ernest 
to leave his house for the purpose of killing him. Jermaine's insufficiency-of-
evidence argument has no merit. 

Brass v. State, 128 Nev. 748, 754-55, 291 P.3d 145, 149-50 (2012) (internal citations omitted). 

4. SUFFICENT EVIDENCE OF ARSON 

 Once again, Petitioner complains that Detective McCarthy is not an “arson expert.”  

Whether he is or is not is not relevant.  He was permitted to testify to his direct observations 

of the victim’s vehicle after it was stolen by Petitioner and the co-defendants in this case and 

set afire.  This was evidenced by the plain and simple facts observable in the photographs 

before the grand jury that accompanied Detective McCarthy’s testimony in this regard.    

 Petitioner asserts, once again without any citation to legal authority: “Testimony of the 

behavior of chemicals and accelerants as well as the behavior of fire in the presence and 

absence of oxygen are plainly areas reserved for expert testimony.”  Petition, page 14, lns. 7-

9.   

 Here, Petitioner cites to (incorrectly cited in Petition as volume 188 of the Nevada 

Reports) Rowland v. State, 118 Nev. 31, 39 (2002).  Rowland found the State’s vouching for 

material witnesses in their closing arguments to be improper.  Comparison to the presentation 

of Detective McCarthy’s case to Rowland is patently absurd.  No vouching for Detective 

McCarthy occurred.  In fact, the dialogue spoke directly to the foundational aspect of the 

Detective’s experience in fires intentionally set to destroy evidence in a murder investigation.  

A fact that was described as part of McCarthy’s extensive resume as a homicide detective.   

5. EVIDENCE OF CONSPIRACY 

 Petitioner misstates the law regarding evidence outside the confession of this particular 

Petitioner.  Once the confession was admitted, other evidence corroborating that is admissible 

000042



 

6 

W:\2017\2017F\185\27\17F18527-OPPS-(HENLEY__DORIE)-002.DOCX 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

to establish the reliability of the confession.  Commonly referred to as the outdated and 

unnecessary “corpus delicti” doctrine.  Petitioner cites to Myatt to support this portion of her 

argument. 

 The critical part of that decision is as follows: 
 

It is well settled in Nevada that there must be sufficient evidence to establish the 
corpus delicti independent of a defendant's own confessions and admissions. 
Corroborative evidence need not be sufficient, independent of the statements, to 
establish the corpus delicti [but must] tend to establish the trustworthiness of the 
statement . . . and provide substantial independent evidence that the offense has 
been committed." United States v. Todd, 657 F.2d 212, 216 (8th Cir. 1981), 
quoting Opper v. United States, 348 U.S. 84 (1954) and Smith v. United States, 
348 U.S. 147 (1954). Accordingly, to sustain a conviction of conspiracy there 
must be independent proof of an agreement among two or more persons. United 
States v. Todd, at 216. 

 

Myatt v. State, 101 Nev. 761, 763, 710 P.2d 720, 722 (1985).   

 The corroboration is from the physical evidence at the scene, to include, the photograph 

of the victim’s pants evidencing the false narrative told to him by Petitioner to lure him to his 

fatal demise.   

CONCLUSION 

 The Petition is unsupported by legal authority to support its claims and relief requested.  

As such, the Petition should be denied in its entirety.   

 

DATED this          6th           day of December, 2017. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

STEVEN B. WOLFSON 
Clark County District Attorney 
Nevada Bar #001565 
 

 
 BY /s/ David Stanton 
  DAVID STANTON 

Chief Deputy District Attorney 
Nevada Bar #003202  

 
 
 
 
 
/// 
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Habeas Corpus, was made this 6th day of December, 2017, by Electronic Filing to: 
 
                                                                MARY D. BROWN, ESQ. 
                                                                Mary@TheLasVegasDefender.com 
 
    ANDREA LUEM, ESQ. 
    Andrea@luemlaw.com 
 
 
 
 
 

BY: /s/ Stephanie Johnson  

 
Employee of the District Attorney’s Office  
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DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
 
THE STATE OF NEVADA, 
                             
                         Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
DORIE HENLEY, ANDREW 
HENLEY, JOSE FRANCO,  
                             
                        Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
 

 
 
  CASE NO.  C-17-327585-1 
  CASE NO.  C-17-327585-2 
  CASE NO.  C-17-327585-3 
 
  DEPT.  XXI      
 
 
 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE VALERIE ADAIR, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2018 

RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING RE: 
CALENDAR CALL 

 

APPEARANCES:   
 
  For the State:         DAVID L. STANTON, ESQ. 
           Chief Deputy District Attorney 
 
  For Defendant Dorie Henley:      PHILLIP H. BROWN, ESQ.  
 
  For Defendant Andrew Henley:       ANDREA L. LUEM, ESQ. 
   
  For Defendant Jose Franco:      JOHN P. PARRIS, ESQ.  
            

RECORDED BY:  SUSAN SCHOFIELD, COURT RECORDER 
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Las Vegas, Nevada; Thursday, September 13, 2018 

* * * * * * 

[Proceeding commenced at 10:31 a.m.] 

  THE COURT:  State versus Dorie Henley, Andrew Henley, 

and Jose Franco.  All right.  Ms. Henley is present in custody with  

Mr. Brown from the law offices of Mr. and Mrs. Brown, correct? 

  MR. BROWN:  Yes, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  Because Ms. Brown is counsel of 

record.   

  And where is Andrew Henley?  He is present in custody with 

Ms. Luem and then we have Jose Franco who’s present in custody with 

Mr. Parris.  And this is the time set for calendar call. 

  State? 

  MR. STANTON:  Your Honor, I received an email of  

Ms. Brown indicating that she would not be ready.  I talked to Ms. Luem 

on another case last week to discuss aspects of the case, so I don’t 

know that the Defense is prepared to announce ready. 

  THE COURT:  But the State is ready? 

  MR. STANTON:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  So as to -- we’ll start with Mr. Brown as 

to Defendant Dorie Henley? 

  MR. BROWN:  Judge, we’re not ready.  We’re going to ask to 

continue the matter.  It’s my understanding that all the other defendants 

are going to ask for the same thing. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, why aren’t you ready? 
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  MR. BROWN:  We have a variety of motions that we’re filing. 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MR. BROWN:  Reviewing extensive discovery and our client 

has provided us, without getting into details, some leads to follow up on. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  Why weren’t the motions filed already? 

  MR. BROWN:  Well, we did get a substantial amount of 

discovery. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  From your client or from Mr. Stanton? 

  MR. BROWN:  From both, from both.  And it’s voluminous, but 

after reviewing that, it’s clear.  And after speaking to the client, it’s led to 

some other issues that we want to explore without getting into defense 

strategy and again, so. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  What -- 

  MR. BROWN:  She understands and she has no objection. 

  THE COURT:  Right.  But I mean part of the whole point of the 

homicide team, if you will, is to move, you know, move the cases forward 

and not grant unnecessary continuances.  Let me ask you this, what 

motions do you anticipate filing? 

  MR. BROWN:  Motions to suppress, motion to sever, possibly 

the additional motion for discovery to name a few. 

  THE COURT:  And -- well there aren’t that many other types 

of motions.  I mean, you can file a motion in limine to do, I don’t know, 

something, but I guess the problem is this has already been continued 

once and I’m -- Mr. Stanton, when was the last time discovery was 

provided to defense from the State? 
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[Colloquy between counsel] 

  THE COURT:  Mr. Brown. 

  MR. BROWN:  Uh-huh. 

  THE COURT:  That’s discourteous.  

  MR. STANTON:  The -- 

  THE COURT:  It is. 

  MR. STANTON:  -- we provided a series of thumb drives, I 

believe, because there’s video -- 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MR. STANTON:  -- in this case from several different areas, 

so that was larger.  So that was done -- I don’t have the date, but it was 

some time ago. 

  THE COURT:  All right. 

  MS. LUEM:  Judge, there’s been -- I will jump in there -- there 

has been a few different times that discovery provided.  I think the most 

recently was probably three weeks to a month ago -- 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MS. LUEM:  -- that I received new discovery from the State 

myself.  I know Mr. Stanton -- I don’t know who he sent it to, if it was 

Jeremy or somebody else, but when I was picking up it was a couple of 

weeks ago.  There were initial audios of our client’s various statements 

that were provided, but it wasn’t until fairly recently that we received the 

transcripts of those.  So I think that may be one of the issues with 

respect to the motion to suppress statements was that we were waiting 

for the full transcript of those statements. 
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  THE COURT:  Okay.  And then, Ms. Luem, are you ready or 

are you seeking a continuance, as well. 

  MS. LUEM:  Judge, I’m requesting a continuance partly in -- 

based on the fact that Ms. Brown is requesting a continuance.  We 

haven’t filed a motion to sever, but based on some information received 

from my client, codefendant, who are brother and sister, from the family 

fairly recently, it does appear that I also will need to file a motion to  

sever -- 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MS. LUEM:  -- if Ms. Brown does not.  So I’m not looking for 

necessarily a lengthy continuance, but I do need additional time. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  And then other than the motion to sever, 

do you anticipate filing any motions on behalf of your client? 

  MS. LUEM:  Other than that, Judge, I don’t believe so.  It 

appears that my client was properly Mirandized, so I think that may be 

the only other outstanding issue that I need to clarify. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.   

  And then, Mr. Parris, as your client. 

  MR. PARRIS:  Again, I received that same thumb drive or 

same or similar thumb drive approximately a month ago.  Again, I don’t 

know the exact date either.  There had been some other developments 

with respect to the other codefendants that I need to look into, as well, 

that I obviously don’t want to get into in open court.  

  I do not know if a -- if we would be filing a severance motion, 

but I don’t know how many more motions we would be filing on behalf of 
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Mr. Franco. 

  THE COURT:  All right.   

  And I’m assuming, Mr. Stanton, when you provide discovery to 

one defendant, you’re providing the same discovery to the codefendants. 

  MR. STANTON:  Yes, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Is that a correct assumption? 

  MR. STANTON:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  So you’re all getting the same thing basically at 

the same time.  All right.  Have any offers of negotiation been made in 

this case? 

  MR. STANTON:  No there was an email, once again, from  

Ms. Brown, probably two months ago, requesting discussions in that 

regard.  I think that was kind of after the time that -- and I don’t want to 

speak for her, but that she had reviewed the discovery to intelligently 

enter that phase of the case.   

  My response was, in this case, factually, it’s going to be a 

package offer.  I said, sure, come on down, but it’s got to be three of 

you, not one of you.  And haven’t had much progress on that.  That may 

be because they’re reviewing the facts and evidence to attempt to sever, 

which at least certainly with two of the defendants I get the motion.  I 

don’t obviously think it should be granted, but I get that the expiration of 

that is a motion.  So that’s -- nothing meaningful has occurred regarding 

negotiations in my opinion. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  So you haven’t made offers as to any of 

the defendants.  And as of this point in time, it would be a global 
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negotiation, meaning all three would have had to accept whatever offer 

is made. 

  MR. STANTON:  Correct. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  I certainly think whether they take it or 

don’t take it or it’s a good offer or bad offer, I think some offer needs to 

be made by the State to at least begin discussions and give these 

attorneys something to at least talk to their clients about.  Does it seem 

reasonable that the State should be making an offer within 30 days or 45 

days?  Is that -- 

  MR. STANTON:  Sure, I’d say 45 days. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  And then we’re going set this over for 

a status check in about 60 days, but right now we’re also going to set a 

trial date.  And has everyone looked at their calendars and how long do 

we need?  I mean, I think 60 or so days is reasonable to get those 

motions filed, 60 to -- is certainly more than enough time, in my opinion, 

for all the defense motions to be filed.  And then maybe 80 days to have 

them all heard and decided.  So given that timeframe, we’re looking at, 

what, February, March, is that -- 

  MR. STANTON:  Fine with me. 

  THE COURT:  I don’t know if what we have available. 

  MR. PARRIS:  Can inform the Court that my February has -- 

I’ve already been stacked with multiple trials in February that appear to 

be rather firm, but my March is rather open.  I can’t speak for anyone 

else, though. 

  THE JUDICIAL EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT:  What about March 
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25th? 

  MR. PARRIS:  Court’s indulgence. 

  MR. STANTON:  That’s fine with me. 

  MS. LUEM:  That works. 

  MR. PARRIS:  Perfect. 

  THE JUDICIAL EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT:  Oaky, March 25th 

for the trial at 9:00 a.m. and that will be -- sorry -- March 21st for the 

calendar call at 9:30. 

  THE CLERK: Status check will be November 15th at 9:30. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  We’ll see everybody back November 

15th. 

  MS. LUEM:  Thanks, Judge. 

  MR. PARRIS:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

[Proceeding concluded at 10:39 a.m.] 

* * * * * * 
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Las Vegas, Nevada; Thursday, November 15, 2018 

* * * * * * 

[Proceeding commenced at 9:49 a.m.] 

  THE COURT:  C327585, State of Nevada versus Dorie 

Henley, 8 is State of Nevada versus Andrew Henley and 9 is State of 

Nevada versus Jose Franco.  Record should reflect I’ve got Ms. Brown 

present on behalf of Henley, Dorie Henley, page 7 identified as 

Defendant 1.  Andrew Henley is present represented by Ms. Luem. 

  MS. LUEM:  Judge, I’m going to stand for Mr. Parris on behalf 

of Mr. Franco, also. 

  THE COURT:  Okay and Mr. Parris on behalf of Mr. Franco, 

Ms. Luem is assisting him in this effort this morning.  I’ve got -- 

  MR. HAMNER:  Good morning, Your Honor, Christopher 

Hamner for the State. 

  THE COURT:  -- Mr. Hamner on behalf of the State.  Time set 

status check, trial readiness. 

  MR. HAMNER:  That’s correct. 

  THE COURT:  Lawyers, take me through.  It looks like there 

was some motions, pending motions to sever, possible discovery issues, 

a deadline.  It sounds like we need to set a -- or looks like we need to set 

a deadline for any opps on the severance effort and a hearing date and 

to confirm any offers and where you are in possible negotiation.  That’s 

what I have. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Yes, Your Honor, let me give you at least an 

update.  So I recently came over and, kind of, took over this case around 
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-- with a variety of other murder cases, so I’m asking for 30 days to file 

an opp with respect to these motions because I’ve been out for two 

months.  And so I’m trying to get up to speed on a variety of these 

cases, so I don’t think there’s any objection from the other side. 

  With respect to an offer, I have a meeting I think scheduled 

this week to speak with the family and talk with them before I extend an 

offer; I at least want to speak with them and also with my detective.  I’ve 

kind of advised them of that, so the plan is over the next week or so, 

maybe two weeks to have an offer out to the parties with respect to this. 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MR. HAMNER:  And that’s kind of where we are at least in 

terms of getting up to speed from the State’s perspective. 

  THE COURT:  Mr. -- Ms. Brown, Ms. Luem, is that a fairly 

accurate -- or I’m -- let’s build a record on it. 

  MS. BROWN:  Yes, Your Honor, I have not objections, you 

know, he’s just taking over a brand new case load.  

  THE COURT:  So what’s the deal here, I set a -- do I set a 

status check.  You said 30 days to file opp, do I want to set a hearing 

date in 30 days on -- 

  MR. HAMNER:  That’s fine.  I mean, if they want, I mean, if 

the defense wants time to file a reply maybe we add another week or 

two for that. 

  THE COURT:  I -- almost set -- set a briefing schedule on that. 

  MR. HAMNER:  That’s fine.  That would be great. 

  MS. LUEM:  That’s fine, Judge.  I just -- 
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  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MS. LUEM:  -- I’d like to put on the record something that I’ve 

mentioned before when we originally set this trial date for March, which 

is that I’m scheduled to begin a 8 to 12 week federal murder trial at the 

end of January.  And so I told Judge Adair that when we scheduled this 

trial that I might not -- that that March trial date may not work for me 

because I’ll be in a federal trial.   

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MS. LUEM:  So I just want to reiterate that I know it’s a status 

check -- 

  THE COURT:  Minutes will reflect Ms. Luems -- 

  MS. LUEM:  -- trial readiness, that I do have a conflict still at 

this point. 

  THE COURT:  What’s your case number on that in your 

federal case, do you know? 

  MS. LUEM:  Case number.  I don’t know off the top of my 

head. 

  THE COURT:  How about your client’s name?  How about 

your client’s name? 

  MS. LUEM:  It’s United States versus Palafox, Judge; it’s the 

Vagos indictment. 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MS. LUEM:  So 19 codefendant and 8 murder defendants are 

scheduled for January 27th.  I represent Benjamin Perez, so. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  Minutes need to reflect that that’s a 
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potential conflict for Ms. Luem, but I’m going to keep moving forward 

under Judge Adair’s direction.   

  Ms. Brown, do you have anything additional you want to put 

on the record? 

  MS. BROWN:  No, I mean, I just ask to keep the trial date in 

the event that my motion to sever is granted.  I’d like to keep it if we 

could. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  So let’s set a hearing date.  I’m giving 

30 days to file an opposition to the motion to sever. 

  THE CLERK:  So December 15th. 

  THE COURT:  Mr. Hamner’s got until that date to file the 

opposition. 

  MS. BROWN:  The 15th is a Saturday; do you want to give him 

the 17th? 

  THE CLERK:  Oh, yes, let’s do the 17th. 

  MR. HAMNER:  I’ll take that. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  And do you want -- defense, do you 

want time to file a potential reply. 

  MS. BROWN:  Yes, Your Honor, if I can have a week. 

  THE COURT:  Week, seven days.  And then how about a 

hearing date seven days after that?  So two weeks after our -- the opps 

to be filed, we’re going to have a hearing.  Does that work? 

  MR. HAMNER:  I’m thinking -- I’m just looking at, kind of -- 

  MS. BROWN:  That’s New Year’s Eve day. 

  MR. HAMNER:  -- yeah, I’m thinking it’s probably right around 

000059



 

Page 6 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

New Years, so maybe a little bit longer. 

  MS. BROWN:  I’m here anyways, so it doesn’t matter. 

  THE COURT:  Yeah, let’s push it a little further out. 

  THE CLERK:  How about January 8th? 

  MR. HAMNER:  That works. 

  THE CLERK:  Okay.  So January 8th is the hearing at 9:30. 

  MS. BROWN:  Could we do the 10th?  Is that okay? 

  THE CLERK:  Sure. 

  MR. HAMNER:  No objection, Your Honor. 

  MS. BROWN:  Thanks. 

  THE COURT:  So January 10th, 9:30 hearing on defense 

motion to sever.  You’re still in Judge Adair’s trial stack for March 25th for 

the calendar call on March 21st.   

  Anything else we can do today, lawyers? 

  MR. HAMNER:  No, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Ms. Henley, any questions? 

  DEFENDANT DORIE HENLEY:  No, sir. 

  THE COURT:  Mr. Henley, which is Mr. Henley?   

  Mr. Henley’s here, any questions? 

  DEFENDANT ANDREW HENLEY:  No. 

  THE COURT:  And -- 

  MS. BROWN:  Your Honor, do you want to --  

[Colloquy between counsel] 

  MS. LUEM:  I just didn’t if the Court wanted to set another 30-

day status check regarding negotiations. 
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  THE COURT:  I think -- let’s just use that severance hearing 

date; we’ll call that both trial readiness and hearing. 

  THE CLERK:  January 10th. 

  THE COURT:  For continuity sake. 

  MS. BROWN:  So it’ll be all parties? 

  MR. HAMNER:  Thank you. 

  THE COURT:  Yes, for all parties. 

  MS. LUEM:  Great.  Thanks, Judge. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  Good.   

  And, again, Mr. Franco, any questions? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  No, sir. 

  THE COURT:  Very good. 

  MS. BROWN:  Can I get my reply date again? 

  THE CLERK:  Say it again? 

  MS. BROWN:  Reply date. 

  THE CLERK:  That was the 24th. 

  MS. BROWN:  Thank you. 

[Proceeding concluded at 9:55 a.m.] 

* * * * * * 
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Las Vegas, Nevada; Thursday, January 10, 2019 

* * * * * * 

[Proceeding commenced at 9:37 a.m.] 

  THE COURT:  State versus Dorie Henley and Andrew Henley 

and Jose Franco.   

  And, Ms. Henley, where’s Ms. Brown? 

  MS. LUEM:  Judge, Ms. Brown had a family emergency and I 

told her that I would stand in for her. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  So we’ve got -- which one’s Andrew 

Henley?  Andrew Henley present in custody with Ms. Luem and Jose 

Franco present in custody with Mr. Parris.  This is just on for several 

motions as well as a status check for trial readiness.  The motions that 

are calendared for today were not opposed. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Well -- and Your Honor, I had reached out to 

your clerk and I’ve spoken with Mr. Brown about this, we’ve reached an 

agreement to pass to this.  We’re in the middle of, kind of, some 

negotiations and so we wanted to try and continue this for 30 days.  Kick 

out the motions to see if we can get a resolution.  And I’ve spoken with 

the other parties in this case and everybody’s kind of in agreement with 

that -- 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MR. HAMNER:  -- if it’s amenable to the Court. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  So you’re asking us to pass it 30 

days.  We’ll either having a hearing on the motion in 30 days -- 

  MR. HAMNER:  Yes. 
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  THE COURT:  -- or when it’s on calendar, the matter will be 

resolved, and you’ll have guilty plea agreements prepared. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Yes, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Is that what you’re telling me? 

  MR. HAMNER:  That’s correct. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  So we’ll pass it out 30 days.    

  Would you do me a favor, Mr. Hamner? 

  MR. HAMNER:  Yes, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Would you let us know like the day before or so 

which it’s going to be? 

  MR. HAMNER:  Yes, I can do that. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  So I don’t have to read everything if the 

case is resolved. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Understood. 

  THE CLERK:  That’s going be February 7th at 9:30. 

  THE COURT:  That’s not quite 30 days.   

  Do you want a little more? 

  MR. HAMNER:  Yes, please. 

  THE CLERK:  How about February 12th? 

  MR. HAMNER:  That works. 

  THE CLERK:  9:30. 

  MS. LEUM:  That’s fine.  Thank you. 

  MR. PARRIS:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

/// 

/// 
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  MR. HAMNER:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Thank you. 

[Proceeding concluded at 9:38 a.m.] 

* * * * * * 
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Las Vegas, Nevada; Tuesday, February 12, 2019 

* * * * * * 

[Proceeding commenced at 10:02 a.m.] 

  THE COURT:  State versus Dorie Henley, who’s present in 

custody with Ms. Brown, and Andrew Henley, who’s present in custody 

with Ms. Luem, and Jose Franco, who’s present in custody with            

Mr. Parris. 

  And we -- this is on for -- it’s on for some motions as well as 

status check, trial readiness.  And my understanding is that the parties 

are still working on a resolution. 

  So, Mr. Hamner, what’s going on? 

  MR. PARRIS:  Well, if I may, Your Honor, again, John Parris, 

appearing with Mr. Franco.  Mr. Franco’s reviewing a guilty plea; he very 

well may be entering it this morning. 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MR. PARRIS:  We anticipate that he will be doing so. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  We’ll trial it. 

  MR. PARRIS:  If we could, I’d appreciate it. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  And then as to Ms. Henley, Ms. Brown. 

  MS. BROWN:  Your Honor, we’re still in negotiations.  We’re, I 

think, pretty close to bottom line in terms of whether it’s going to deal or 

go.  I don’t think that Mr. Hamner is ready to go this setting.  I’m not, you 

know, I would prefer not to go this setting as well as I have a sex assault 

case in the same timeframe, but I’ll submit it to the Court. 
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  THE COURT:  Okay.   

  MR. HAMNER:  Your Honor, the State’s position on this is 

we’re trying to -- we’ve had a framework that we’ve been working with all 

three attorneys on.  What Mr. Franco decides has an affect on, 

essentially, what we do with the other two, so it’s pretty critical that we 

have a decision on this. 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MR. HAMNER:  The deadline is -- for today for him to decide 

because it will literally affect how we move the -- 

  THE COURT:  Let’s trail everybody then. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Thank you very much. 

  THE COURT:  I basically thought that your motions --           

Ms. Henley’s motions for an evidentiary hearing and motion to sever 

were being passed over to see if the case resolved. 

  MR. HAMNER:  That’s -- 

  MS. BROWN:  Correct. 

  MR. HAMNER:  -- that’s correct. 

  THE COURT:  And then Mr. Hamner would be filing an 

opposition.  So let’s see what’s going on. 

  MS. BROWN:  If we don’t resolve. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Thank you. 

  THE COURT:  And I don’t know if I want to vacate the trial 

date just yet, so let’s trail all three. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Thank you very much, Your Honor, I 

appreciate it. 
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  MS. BROWN:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

  MR. PARRIS:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

[Matter trailed] 

[Matter recalled at 10:39 a.m.] 

  MS. BROWN:  You’re Honor, could we recall the two 

Henley’s?  Four and five. 

  THE COURT:  Where’s Mr. Parris? 

  MS. BROWN:  In the box. 

  MR. PARRIS:  I’m right here, Your Honor.  And I do have a 

signed guilty plea, so we’d be ready to call Mr. Franco as well. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  So recalling Dorie Henley, Andrew 

Henley, and Jose Franco. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Your Honor, may I approach you with an 

amended indictment? 

  THE COURT:  You may. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Thank you.  With respect to Mr. Franco. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  An amended indictment concerning 

Defendant Jose Franco has been -- everybody can sit down right now.  

The Henley’s can sit down, and Mr. Franco needs to remain standing. 

  MR. PARRIS:  And if I may approach. 

  MS. LUEM:  Judge, I was going to request possibly that the 

Henley matters, two Henley’s be status checked next week and then  

Ms. Brown and I can leave, so we don’t have to stay for the plea canvas 

for Mr. Franco because Ms. Brown has other matters. 

  THE COURT:  Are we comfortable the plea is going to go 
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down with respect to Mr. Franco? 

  MR. PARRIS:  Yes, Your Honor.  We have filed a copy of the 

guilty plea and we do have a copy of the amended indictment and waive 

its reading. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  You can come back on February 14th 

at 9:30. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Thank you. 

  THE COURT:  All right. 

  MS. BROWN:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

  MS. LUEM:  Thanks, Judge. 

  THE COURT:  Mr. Franco, the Court is in possession of a 

written plea of guilty, wherein you agree to plead guilty to the felony 

crime of murder in the second degree with use of a deadly weapon. 

  Is this your signature here on page five of the written plea of 

guilty? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yes, ma’am. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  Before the Court may accept your 

written plea of guilty, I must be satisfied that your plea is freely and 

voluntarily given.  Are you making this plea freely and voluntarily? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  Other than what’s contained in the written plea 

of guilty, have any promises or threats been made to induce you or to 

get you to plead guilty in this case? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  No. 

  THE COURT:  And are you pleading guilty to crime of murder 
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in the second degree with use of a deadly weapon because in truth and 

in fact you are guilty? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  I am, ma’am. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  Before you signed the written plea of 

guilty, did you read it? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  Did you understand everything contained in the 

written plea of guilty? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  Did you also read the amended indictment 

charging you with murder in the second degree with use of a deadly 

weapon? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yes, ma’am. 

  THE COURT:  And do you understand the charge to which 

you’re entering your plea of guilty? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yes, ma’am. 

  THE COURT:  Did you have a full and ample opportunity to 

discuss your plea of guilty as well as the charge to which you’re pleading 

guilty with your lawyer, Mr. Parris? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  And did Mr. Parris answer all of your questions 

to your satisfaction? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  He did, ma’am. 

  THE COURT:  Do you feel like Mr. Parris has spent enough 

time with you in this case going over everything, like the evidence and 
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the discovery and explaining everything to you? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yes, ma’am. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  And do you feel like anybody is 

forcing you to plead guilty in this case, such as your lawyer Mr. Parris or 

the Court or anybody else? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  No. 

  THE COURT:  Are you pleading guilty today to murder in the 

second degree with use of a deadly weapon of your own free will? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  Before we turn to your plea, do you 

have any questions that you would like to ask me, the Court? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  No. 

  THE COURT:  Tell me then in your own words what you did 

on or about October 10, 2017, here in Clark County, Nevada, that 

causes you to plead guilty to murder in the second degree. 

  MR. PARRIS:  Your Honor, we will stipulate to the facts 

contained in the amended indictment. 

  THE COURT:  All right.   

  Do you acknowledge that you and the individuals named on 

lines 21 and 22 stabbed a human being by the name of Jose Juan 

Garcia-Hernandez? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yeah. 

  THE COURT:  Yes? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  And do you acknowledge that as a result of 
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those stab wounds, Mr. Garcia-Hernandez died? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  And do you acknowledge that he was stabbed 

with a deadly weapon being in this case, a knife; is that true? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  And you acknowledge that you acted willfully, 

unlawfully, feloniously, and with malice aforethought? 

  DEFENDANT FRANCO:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  Is that acceptable, State? 

  MR. HAMNER:  Yes, it is, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  All right.   The amended indictment original is 

not dated, so the Court will interlineate today’s date. 

  MR. PARRIS:  No objection, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  All right.   

  MR. HAMNER:  No objection. 

  THE COURT:  Or the Court Clerk.   

  And the Court finds that Mr. Franco’s plea of guilty has been 

freely and voluntarily given.  His plea is hereby accepted and the matter 

if referred to the Department of Parole and Probation and we’ll set it over 

for presentence investigation and in custody sentencing date on -- 

  THE CLERK:  That’s going to be April 4th at 9:30. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Thank you, your Honor. 

  MR. PARRIS:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Have a good day, Your Honor. 
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  THE COURT:  Thank you. 

[Proceeding concluded at 10:44 a.m.] 

* * * * * * 
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Las Vegas, Nevada; Thursday, September 26, 2019 

* * * * * * 

[Proceeding commenced at 10:15 a.m.] 

  THE COURT:   State versus Dorie Henley and Andrew 

Henley.   

  And you said, Ms. Brown, you’re standing in for Ms. Luem. 

  MS. BROWN:  I am, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Was she just not available today? 

  MS. BROWN:  She’s in that federal 12 week trial. 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MS. BROWN:  And so the only day off she has -- 

  THE COURT:  Is Friday. 

  MS. BROWN:  --is Fridays. 

  THE COURT:  Yeah, we have that issue with several other 

lawyers. 

  MS. BROWN:  Yeah. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  So this is on for status check, trial 

readiness.  Last time we were here, we discussed whether or not the 

case would be resolving.  And I believe Mr. Henley could take the deal 

regardless of whether Ms. Henley took it, but Ms. Henley’s deal was 

contingent on Mr. Henley taking the deal; is that right? 

  MS. BROWN:  That’s correct.  And since then, there’s been 

some discussion about possibly doing a settlement conference. 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MS. BROWN:  You know, if the Court were inclined, we 
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thought that that might be beneficial.  It’s a case that realistically should 

negotiate.   

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MS.  BROWN:  We’re just a little stuck. 

  THE COURT:  You have a little bit of time, as you know, 

because it’s not until January.  So I would suggest -- I know Mr. Hamner 

is a fan of the settlement conferences, so you three lawyers need to 

coordinate and get this to the -- Judge Bell prior -- way before the 

calendar call. 

  MS. BROWN:  Okay. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  And then the last time we were here, it 

was also a discussion on the redactions. 

  MS. BROWN:  We haven’t discussed that in a while.  Actually, 

the last time we were here, we were talking about her glasses. 

  THE COURT:  Oh, okay. 

  MS. BROWN:  And the redactions, I think, are an issue.       

Ms. Luem does not.   

  THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, -- 

  MS. BROWN:  It would be difficult for me to have that 

conversation without her here because we don’t agree.   

  THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, we need to get that going if it’s not 

going to resolve. 

  MS. BROWN:  I understand. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  So let’s come back for another status 

check in 30 days. 
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  THE CLERK:  October 24th at 9:30. 

  MS. BROWN:  Would it be possible to -- actually that’s fine.  

October 24th at 9:30? 

  THE COURT:  Right. 

  MS. BROWN:  Okay.  And just so the Court’s aware, we did 

submit the order for my client to be transported to get glasses the -- 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MS. BROWN:  -- the jail said, great news, we’re going to do it 

in house and we don’t have to transport her.   

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MS. BROWN:  They haven’t transported her and they haven’t 

given her her glasses.  And so I guess -- I emailed over there, they said 

that the clinic is today -- 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MS. BROWN:  -- until noon. 

  THE COURT:  Oh. 

  MS. BROWN:  And so she’s not going to make it back and so 

they said the next day is October 10th. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, that’s before the status check. 

  MS. BROWN:  It is. 

  THE COURT:  So Ms. Henley ought to have her glasses then 

by the next time she comes to court. 

  MS. BROWN:  She should. 

  THE COURT:  Right.  Okay. 

  MS. BROWN:  So just to keep the Court up to date. 
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  THE COURT:  Right.  So that should go in the minutes and 

we’ll make sure she has her glasses by the next status check. 

  MS. BROWN:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you. 

  MS. MORALES:  Thank you. 

[Proceeding concluded at 10:19 a.m.] 

* * * * * * 
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Las Vegas, Nevada; Thursday, December 5, 2019 

* * * * * * 

[Proceeding commenced at 10:48 a.m.] 

  THE COURT:  State versus Dorie Henley, who’s present in 

custody and Andrew Henley, we’ve got Mr. Brown and Mr. Luem.  This 

is on for status check, trial readiness.  There was, I think, going to be a 

settlement conference.  Has there been any advancement in negotiation 

or had -- there has been a settlement conference. 

  MR. BROWN:  There hasn’t been one, I don’t anticipate 

scheduling one.  We have communicated the offer to Ms. Henley and 

we’re still ongoing with that, so. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  

  And, Ms. Luem? 

  MS. LUEM:  I have been in the discussions with Mr. Hamner; 

we’re going to schedule a settlement conference.  I think he’s going to 

reach out to Judge Bell this week, hopefully, because we’re dark next 

week in the Vagos trial and we’d be able to do that maybe next week. 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MS. LUEM:  But I’m not going to be available for the January 

trial date that’s currently set in this courtroom. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  Is that because of the Vagos trial?  

Because Mr. Hill just said that’s starting back up in February. 

  MS. LUEM:  No, that -- I think, I think -- 

  THE COURT:  Or are they -- 

  MS. LUEM:  -- either misspoke or you misheard.  We’re dark 
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next week. 

  THE COURT:  I heard that. 

  MS. LUEM:  And then we start back on the 16th and we have a 

trial calendar through the end of December and we just got an updated 

trial calendar through the end of January. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  And so when are you in trial on the 

Vagos matter in January? 

  MS. LUEM:  Well, the entire month of January.  I think there’s 

two free Fridays that are dark and, I mean, I can approach if you want to 

see the schedule.  But, I mean, it’s basically -- 

  THE COURT:  You don’t need to show it to me. 

  MS. LUEM:  -- just about every -- just about every day with the 

exception of holidays, so we are -- I think this trial’s scheduled for the 

13th and we -- we’re in -- we have four trial days that week. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  So you’re orally requesting that we 

vacate the trial date and set another trial date; is that right? 

  MS. LUEM:  Yes, I am, I -- just because I can’t -- I mean, I, 

obviously, can’t here and there. 

  THE COURT:  All right.   

   And, Mr. Brown, would you have any objection to vacating the 

trial date as to your client to keep it with Ms. Luem’s client? 

  MR. BROWN:  No, Your Honor, we’ve already collectively had 

some discussion with Mr. Hamner, who I believe spoke to the DA about 

that and bounced around some potential trial dates -- 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 
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  MR. BROWN:  -- so that we can make sure that we’re out of 

any real zone of conflicts, so. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.   

  So, State, no objection based, obviously, on those 

representations to vacating the trial dates as to both defendants? 

  MR. SCHWARTZER:  No, Mr. Hamner had no objection. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  You’re just filling in, this isn’t your case. 

  MR. SCHWARTZER:  I am.  It’s not my case. 

  THE COURT:  All right. 

  MR. SCHWARTZER:  I do have his trial schedule, though. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  So what are we looking at for a new trial 

date? 

  MR. SCHWARTZER:  Mr. Hamner just asked for some time 

after February. 

  MS. LUEM:  I think he said after March, but -- all right -- or 

April, right? 

  MR. SCHWARTZER:  Yeah, I mean, he would -- he would 

prefer after April. 

  MS. LUEM:  Yeah, after mid-April I think is -- April -- late April 

or May. 

  THE COURT:  And how long do -- I mean, with two 

defendants, how long do we anticipate? 

  MS. LUEM:  Maximum of two weeks, I would -- 

  MR. BROWN:  I’d agree with that. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  Let’s see what we have available. 
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[Colloquy between the Court and Clerk] 

  THE CLERK:  Can you do July? 

  MR. SCHWARTZER:  His July -- he has nothing scheduled in 

July. 

  MS. LUEM:  I can’t do July.  I have a death penalty case 

starting on the 14th. 

[Colloquy between the Court and Clerk] 

  THE COURT:  You want it April or March, originally? 

  MS. LUEM:  Later in April if it’s possible. 

  THE CLERK:  Can you do April 27th? 

  MR. SCHWARTZER:  Sounds good, Your Honor. 

  THE CLERK:  Calendar call will be April 23rd at 8:30 -- excuse 

me, 9:30; jury trial will be April 27th at 9:00 a.m. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  Let’s set this out for another status 

check in about 60 days. 

  THE CLERK:  February 4th at 9:30. 

  MR. SCHWARTZER:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

  MR. BROWN:  Thank you. 

  THE COURT:  Is that it for all three of you? 

  MR. BROWN:  It is and then so any future -- well, I don’t think 

we have anymore future dates, so never mind. 

  MR. SCHWARTZER:  Status check, I believe. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  We can talk about the negotiations at 

the February status check. 

  MR. BROWN:  Sounds good, Judge. 
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  THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you. 

  MR. BROWN:  Thank you. 

[Proceeding concluded at 10:52 a.m.] 

* * * * * * 
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EXHIBIT
SLIPREⅣE COURT RULE 252

Rule 252(2).

Settlement conferences in c五 nlinal cases. The purpose of a settlement

conference is to facilitate good faith discussions to resolve any c五 rninal case

before the district court in a manner that serves the interest ofjustice.

(a) In any Criminal case before the district court, either party may

request a Settlement conference, or the trial judge rnay, on its own, recommend that

counsel with settlement authority participate in a settlement conference' A case

will not be referred to a settlement conference if any party objects' The defendant

must consent on the record or in writing before a case is referred to a settlement

cOnference. In all caseS, the settlement COnference must nOt be before the trial

judge.IfSettlement discussiOns do not reSult in an agreement,the case must be

υヽノ   ン V′ ウ̂ ^~ ~

by the parties,and no party has any right tO an offer,or may raiSe any claim from‐    ‐ ^⌒“亀r_nce inCluding

out nOt lllnlteo■
0し・・し V9~

DeciSion― making authOrity remains With the parties and not the settlement iudge.|

The ttial iudge,the settlement iudge,or any parW may un■

aterally terminate the

settlement conference at any time'

(c) Settlement conferences must, in all respects' be confrdential and not

settlement judge and the trial judge'

judge must have no contact or

returned to the trial judge'

(め  じ・I

settlerrlent

or recorded'
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communication, except that the Settlement judge mLay, without comment

observation. report to the trial judge that:

(1) The parties cannot reach an agreement:

(2) The parties have reached an agreement, and the agreement

reached may be reduced to writing, signed by the prosecuting attorney, the

defendant, and defense counsel and submitted to the court for approval;

(3) Meaningful attempt to settle is ongoing: or

(4) The settlement Judge withdraws from further participation in

potential sefflements.

(e) Should the settlement conference result in a settlement agreement,

the terms of the agreement must be reduced to a guilty plea agreement in

accordance with NRS l74.o63and signed by the defendant, defense counsel (if any),

and the prosecutor. The parties must frle the guilty plea agreement with the trial

judge. Any party may withdraw from an agreement before the trial judge accepts

the plea.

(O  If the parties reach a guilty plea agreement that illV01Ves any

stipulationS,the tnal judge agreeS that such a settlement Shall be conditiOned on

the trialjudgび s aCCeptance of aFld agreement tO f01low the stipulations.If the trial

judge iS unwilling tO abide by the stipulatiOns,then either Side may Withdraw

from the guilty Plea agreement'

4
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Las Vegas, Nevada; Thursday, July 2, 2020 

* * * * * * 

[Proceeding commenced at 3:46 p.m.] 

  THE COURT:  State versus Dorie Henley.   

  MR. HAMNER:  It’s Christopher Hamner for the State.  I know 

the Browns, Mary Brown and Phil Brown, had -- were on this matter. 

  MS. BROWN:  I’m here, I’m here. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  And where’s Ms. Henley? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  I’m right here. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  And so this is on for the motion for 

appointment of independent counsel.   

  And, Ms. Henley, is it your desire to withdraw your plea and 

proceed to trial on the original charges against you? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, ma’am. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  And just in a nutshell, what is the 

basis for that? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  What are the reasons for it? 

  THE COURT:  Right, right. 

  THE DEFENDANT:  I felt like I was rushed into taking the 

deal. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  

  Ms. -- who -- is Ms. Brown there? 

  MS. BROWN:  I am, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  I see that you want independent counsel 

appointed.  Where I’m going with this questioning is to ascertain whether 
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or not there’s a conflict with you and Ms. Henley or whether you can file 

the motion on her behalf.  Obviously, if she’s alleging that, you know, 

you didn’t meet with her and tell her the consequences of her plea, then 

there may be a conflict, but if it’s some other reason, then we don’t need 

to appoint independent counsel.  So that’s where I’m going with this 

questioning. 

  And, Ms. Brown, are there any representations on that you 

can make to the Court? 

  MS. BROWN:  I believe that Ms. Henley is going to make 

allegations that within the context of the settlement process that she was 

rushed into taking a deal by myself, the prosecutor, and the settlement 

judge.  So based on that, I think it would be a conflict for me to handle. 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  Is that what you’re -- one of your claims, Ms. Henley? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, ma’am. 

  THE COURT:  So you’re asserting or telling me that you felt 

rushed and you didn’t have time to make an independent decision.  Is 

that, essentially, your claim? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  All right.  We’ll go ahead and pass this over.  

The Court would need to contact Mr. Christensen’s office to have 

someone appointed.  And we’ll give you a new date. 

  THE CLERK:  July 9th at 3:30.  

  THE DEFENDANT:  Thank you. 

  THE COURT:  Thank you. 
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  MR. HAMNER:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

  MS. BROWN:  Thank you, Your Honor.  

  THE COURT:  And the sentencing date is after that, so we’ll 

discuss the date at the next court appearance. 

  MR. HAMNER:  Yes, Your Honor. 

  MS. BROWN:  Thank you. 

[Proceeding concluded at 3:49 p.m.] 

* * * * * * 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST:  I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed 
the audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my 
ability. 
      
      _____________________________ 
      Robin Page 
      Court Recorder/Transcriber 
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DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES July 09, 2020 

 
C-17-327585-1 State of Nevada 

vs 
Dorie Henley 

 
July 09, 2020 3:30 PM Confirmation of Counsel  
 
HEARD BY: Adair, Valerie  COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11C 
 
COURT CLERK: April Watkins 
 
RECORDER: Robin Page 
 
PARTIES  
PRESENT: 

 
Gaffney, Lucas Attorney for Deft. appearing on 

Blue Jeans 
Henley, Dorie Regina Defendant 
Moors, Lindsey Attorney for Pltf. 
State of Nevada Plaintiff 

 

 
JOURNAL ENTRIES 

 
- Upon Court's inquiry, Mr. Gaffney CONFIRMED as counsel for the limited purpose of determining 
if motion to withdraw plea can be filed.  Mr. Gaffney requested transcript of plea be prepared.  
COURT SO ORDERED.  Colloquy.  COURT ORDERED, sentencing date VACATED and matter SET 
for status check. 
 
CUSTODY 
 
7/28/2020 3:30 PM STATUS CHECK:  SET BRIEFING SCHEDULE 
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Friday, January 15, 2021 

 

[Hearing commenced at 2:28 p.m.] 

THE COURT:  Page 9, C-17-327585-1, State of Nevada 

versus Dorie Henley. 

Good afternoon, Ms. Henley. 

Who’s present on behalf of the State? 

MR. HAMNER:  Christopher Hamner for the State. 

THE COURT:  All right.  And good afternoon to you. 

And who’s present on behalf of Ms. Henley? 

MR. GAFFNEY:  Good afternoon, Your Honor, Lucas Gaffney 

on behalf of Ms. Henley. 

THE COURT:  All right.  And good afternoon to you. 

So we are here on defendant’s motion to withdraw guilty plea.  

I have reviewed the motion, the opposition, and the reply. 

I’ll start with Mr. Gaffney, as this is your motion, is there 

anything you would like to add outside of the written pleadings? 

MR. GAFFNEY:  Not outside of the written pleading, Your 

Honor.  Our -- my request today is for an evidentiary hearing on the 

issues that we put forth in the motion and also in the reply.  I think that 

there are factual issues that would require us to expand the record so the 

Court can analyze the totality of the circumstances, determine whether 

there’s a fair and just reason for Ms. Henley to withdraw her plea.  So I 

would request an evidentiary hearing. 

THE COURT:  Well, let me -- I’m going to drill down on that a 
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little bit.  In reading your motion it seems -- and you can correct me if I’m 

wrong and that’s totally fine -- really the crux of your argument is that the 

11 to life or the 11 -- the sentence that was 11 years at the bottom wasn’t 

conveyed but that seems to be contradicted by the other information 

provided.   

Am I wrong in that that is the crux of your argument? 

MR. GAFFNEY:  Well, Your Honor, there’s three issues and 

that’s one.  And in regard to that issue, my understanding is that the 

State extended an offer within the structure of second degree murder.  

There were, I believe, several offers that were extended within the 

structure of second degree murder; however, the specific offer of 11 to 

life was never conveyed.  I think there may have been an offer of 13 to 

life that was conveyed and potentially another one but not that specific 

offer of 11 to life.   

And when I looked through the record that the State included in 

their opposition, from what I could see in the court minutes and the 

transcripts, there is not a specific discussion of that offer being extended 

or rejected.  And so that’s why I believe an evidentiary hearing would be 

warranted so we bring in counsel to figure out when she received that 

offer, when she conveyed that offer, and potentially when, you know, if 

Ms. Henley did receive that offer, when it was rejected.   

And then I also believe an evidentiary hearing is warranted on 

the second issue regarding the jailhouse informant.  As, you know, we 

put forward in our motion, and also in our reply, although Ms. Henley was 

aware that the interview had taken place with the jailhouse informant it 
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wasn’t until I provided her a copy of the actual statement -- well after she 

had entered her plea -- when she discovered that the statement she had 

previously given to the police and the contents of the statement were -- a 

lot of it were in alignment.   

And so I think an evidentiary hearing is warranted on that to 

determine, one, why that statement was withheld.  My understanding is 

that Ms. Henley’s counsel refused to provide the statement before the 

informant’s safety.  And I think that Ms. Henley was entitled to have it and 

had she been able to obtain a copy of that she wouldn’t have entered a 

plea but would have chosen to proceed to trial. 

And then we also put forward an issue of -- that she did not 

have enough time to consider the offer.  And just to be clear, that’s in 

reference to what occurred at the settlement conference; that she was 

presented with an offer at the settlement conference.  She was told this is 

the last offer that you’re going to get.  She had two minutes to make a 

decision whether to accept the offer and then 30 minutes to think about it 

as the paperwork was being prepared for the entry of plea. 

So I believe that at least on two of those issues, the issue 

regarding the offer and the issue regarding the jailhouse statement, that 

an evidentiary hearing would be warranted and would help the Court to 

understand the totality of the circumstances under which Ms. Henley 

entered her plea. 

THE COURT:  All right.  And thank you for that, Mr. Gaffney. 

Let me hear from Mr. Hamner. 

MR. HAMNER:  Yes, Your Honor.    
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And if I could at least start with the jailhouse informant issue 

first.  The problem with the argument that counsel has just kind of 

posited, which was essentially if my client had had access to the 

informant’s statement she never would have taken the offer.  The 

problem with that offer is it flies in the face of what actually happened 

during her plea canvass.  I mean, the purpose of a plea canvass is to 

figure out if the defendant really wants to go through with the particular 

offer that she has.  If you take this argument that they’re raising right 

now, at whole cloth, which is she genuinely always wanted to see the 

substance of the statement.   

That was never discussed during the plea canvass.  It was 

never discussed during the settlement conference.  At no point does   

Ms. Henley talk about, you know, for me a big hang up about resolving 

this case is until I see the substance of an informant’s recorded interview, 

I’m not taking this negotiation.  And what cuts against her is she’s always 

known about the informant and the defense has known that.   

So I don’t think physically holding this transcript in her hand 

would have changed her mind about things or she would have spoken up 

about it at the plea canvass, during the settlement conference, at some 

point because this case has been going on for years.  I mean, the second 

degree, deadly weapon, right to argue offer has been out there ever 

since I started on this case and that was several years ago.   

So I don’t know that that argument requires an evidentiary 

hearing because I think it’s belied by the record.   

With respect to the argument that she has not had enough 
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time, again I think the Court needs to examine -- and I think the State has 

laid out pretty clearly in its briefing -- that the time to consider an offer 

within the scope of a second degree murder with a right to argue, or 

somewhere within that range, has been going on ever since I took over 

the case.   And I’ve made it very clear to everybody involved, Listen, I will 

work with you.  But what was very clear was that Ms. Henley never 

wanted to take a life tail, ever.   

And that kind of dove tails into this argument about the 11 to 

life.  Prior to her being caught writing a jail letter trying to convince her 

boyfriend to lie to the Court and retract everything that he said, prior to 

being caught with that Ms. Henley had absolutely no interest in a second 

with use or anything involving a life tail.  She wanted a second degree 

murder, with no deadly weapon whatsoever.  And she wasn’t interested 

in taking it.   

And where you have further corroboration of that intent is the 

very letter itself, because she says, Listen, if you lie and you say I made 

all this stuff up that completely incriminates me, I can then get an 8 to 20, 

which would be a voluntary with use, which is entirely consistent as to 

why Dorie Henley never took a second degree murder offer that had 

been out there for years.  It’s only when she’s caught and I pull the offer 

off the table and I say, All right, you’re kind of done at this point, we’re 

just going to go to trial, or maybe we’ll go back to you just taking a 

straight first at this point because you’re complete -- you’ve confessed 

already and now we caught you trying to coach witnesses to lie, you’re 

never going to beat the rap on this.   
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And it’s at that point we finally go to a settlement conference 

and the big hang up at settlement conference was she didn’t think she 

should take anything in time more than the defendant who took a second 

degree right to argue who had stabbed the victim.  She didn’t think she 

should take more than the guy who actually plunged in the knife.  And 

that’s how we got to the 15 to life.  It’s one year less than what he got 

when he argued before Judge Adair.   

And so that’s really the genesis of it.   

So from the State’s position I don’t know that an evidentiary 

hearing is necessary.  If the Court, in an abundance of caution, wants to 

hold such an evidentiary hearing, I mean, that’s fine by the State.  But, 

you know, the chronology of things, her position before getting caught 

with this incriminating letter and after, really is a very clear reflection of 

why she took the offer that she did.   

But with that the State would submit on the arguments it laid 

out in its opposition. 

THE COURT:  All right.  Here’s where I’m going to come down 

on this, I do think in an abundance of caution we should have a limited 

evidentiary hearing.  And it’s going to be limited in the following ways:  I 

want to hear from prior counsel regarding when and what offers were 

conveyed and when and if those offers were rejected. 

I also, in order to meet her burden for grounds to withdraw the 

plea based on the argument set forth in the motion, I want to hear 

regarding how and why the informant impacted or would have changed 

Ms. Henley’s mind regarding the plea itself. 
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Those are the two areas that I think are necessary for me to 

explore in order to have a fulsome record and to make a complete 

decision on the pending motion.  

We can do that -- we can do the hearing via BlueJeans, of 

course the challenge is with Ms. Henley being in custody, setting that up.  

So I am going to set this for status in two weeks, and between now and 

then I’m going to ask counsel for the State to work with Mr. Gaffney to 

figure out when we want to set this for that hearing.   

And certainly Mr. Gaffney if you can reach out to Ms. Brown 

between now and the two week status check so we can figure out when 

she’s available and how she’s available in order to hold that evidentiary 

hearing.  

I think it’s a possibility, if we work through Department 7, to 

have a special setting for this.  But to the degree that anyone needs 

assistance with that, please reach out to chambers so we’re all on the 

same page and we can get that taken care of. 

Are there any questions, I’ll start with the State, Mr. Hamner, 

any questions? 

MR. HAMNER:  No, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  And, Mr. Gaffney, any questions? 

MR. GAFFNEY:  Your Honor, are we waiting to get, I guess, a 

range of dates from Department 7 first or do you want us to just start 

coordinating our schedules to try to figure out what availability the parties 

have? 

THE COURT:  I’m going to say, yes, that’s a really broad yes.  
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So, yes, start coordinating, and, yes, get dates from Department 7 that 

way we can bring that altogether and hopefully get an update in two 

weeks and we can get something on calendar. 

MR. GAFFNEY:  And should I contact Department 7 or is that 

something that’s going to be done through the Court? 

THE COURT:  It would be either you or the State.  It’s actually 

your motion, so you should contact Department 7 to try and get that on 

calendar. 

MR. GAFFNEY:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  And if there are any issues -- 

MR. GAFFNEY:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  -- or you’re having challenges, please reach out 

to Department -- to us and we’ll try and assist you. 

MR. GAFFNEY:  Understood.  Thank you, Judge. 

THE COURT:  All right.  So we’ll see everyone again on 

January 29th at 1:30 in the afternoon. 

MR. HAMNER:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you. 

/// 

/// 

/// 
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MR. GAFFNEY:  Thank you, Judge. 

THE COURT:  Thank you. 

[Hearing concluded at 2:40 p.m.] 

* * * * * * 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:    I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the 

audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability. 
      
  
      _____________________________ 
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      Court Recorder/Transcriber 
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